
Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Seth D. Bernard 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey D. Rhodes 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

Regular Meeting 

City Hall Council Chambers 

 

DATE:    October 01, 2019 

 

 

OPEN SESSION - 6:15 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Mayor and Council Update 

1. Update from Mayor Morriss on the status of the West Side Bridges 

Director's Reports 

(A) Public Works 

Central Services monthly report for August, 2019 

(B) Police 

Police Department monthly report for August, 2019 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the Work Session and Executive Session Minutes of July 9, 2019 

Unfinished Business 

(A) Ordinances 

1. Ordinance 3859 (2nd and 3rd readings) - authorizing terms for the conveyance of 349 

Davidson Street to Venus Starr and authorizing execution of a deed to effect the transfer 

New Business 

(A) Ordinances 



Ordinance 3860 (1st reading) - to amend Chapter 25 of the City Code to include regulations 

pertaining to small cell technology in public rights-of-way and to amend the Use 

Regulations Table accordingly 

(B) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

Order 26,532 - authorizing the Chief of Police to accept a FY20 MCSS School Safety Traffic 

Safety Grant in the amount of $10,640 to support police overtime in monitoring school 

bus routes and deterring unsafe traffic behavior 

Order 26,533 - authorizing the Chief of Police to accept a FY20 Maryland Highway Safety 

Office (MHSO) Traffic Safety Grant in the amount of $3000 for police overtime support 

concentrating on distracted driving and DUI enforcement for the project period 10/1/19 - 

9/30/20 

Order 26,534 - accepting the proposal of FESCO Emergency Sales, provided through the H-

GAC Cooperative Purchasing Program (Bid No. AM10-18), to remount the 2011 Horton 

Model 603 Ambulance on a 2020 Ford F-550 4x4 Cab and Chassis per Selected Feature 

List 15174 dated September 23, 2019, for a total delivered price of $178,375 

Order 26,535 - authorizing the execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging that 

the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by Ruth Clark pertaining to 308 

Woodside Drive has been fully paid and satisfied 

Order 26,536 - authorizing Special Taxing District residential exemptions for the 2019/2020 

tax year for properties 49-59 North Centre Street ($964.33) and 101 South Centre Street 

($171.34) 

Order 26,537 - accepting the proposal from McNees Wallace & Nurick LLC to provide legal 

services to the City to address matters before the PA Public Utility Commission and the 

PA Department of Environmental Protection, and authorizing execution of 

documentation to formalize acceptance of the proposal 

Order 26,538 - amending Order No. 26,425 to increase the time frame and designated area to 

be subject to Section 11-113 of the City Code, entitled "Open Containers of Alcohol," to 

accommodate events in the downtown on October 12, 2019, notwithstanding that open 

glass containers shall not be permitted; the extended area shall include an additional 

portion of Baltimore Street and an additional portion of Centre Street, and the time frame 

shall be from 111:00 AM through 9:00 PM    

Order 26,539 - lifting the provisions of Section 11-113 of the Code, entitled "Open Containers 

of Alcohol," on Saturday, October 5, 2019, from 4 PM until 2 AM, on Pershing Street 

from Mechanic Street to the parking lot at Merchants Alley, to accommodate the 10th 

year anniversary celebration for Niner's Canal Pub, notwithstanding that open glass 

containers shall not be permitted 

Order 26,540 - accepting the sole source proposal from Safe Slide Restoration to resurface the 

large blue slide at Constitution Park with Gel Coat in the amount not to exceed $25,400 

  



 

Order 26,541 - accepting the sole source proposal from Flowbird Urban Intelligence to 

provide four (4) parking kiosks for the Center City and Frederick St. Parking Garages and 

one (1) "Pay & Display" parking meter for Lot No. 1 in the amount not to exceed 

$35,351.60  

Public Comments 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

Adjournment  

  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Central Services monthly report for August, 2019 

  



                       Central Services – August  2019 
 

 City Hall:  Repaired globe light at bottom of stairs. Replaced LEDs that were burn out. 

Repaired leaking A/C coil in Atrium air handling unit. Installed three new panic buttons. 

Cleaned up from clogged sewer line outside that back up into the basement. Fixed tile on 

porch on Liberty side.                                                                                                   

                                                                                                                                                                           

 Municipal Service Center: Cleaned rain gutters and cut trees back over hanging roof 

back side of building. Replaced lose truss on street sweeper dump area. Replaced power 

supply on 16 channel security camera system. 

 

 Public Safety Building: Replaced filter in the three main air handlers. Replaced main 

gate operator. Replaced LEDs that were burned out. Installed last four shower heads that 

were on back order. Pulled new data cat 6e cable to engineering office area. Replaced 

broken floor tile in command room of Fire department. Replaced stage one condenser fan 

motor on Chiller. Made repairs to shooting range for the police department. Buzzer in 

lobby on police department side stopped working.  Replace emergency lights in bathroom 

of fire department. 

 

 Fire Stations #2: Repaired blower fan on lounge A/C unit. Repaired garage door spring 

and cables. 

 

 Park Pool & Parks & Rec.: Repaired roof at lower bath house Mason Rec complex and 

dry wall from water leak (wind damage). Worked on lights at two ball fields Mason Rec. 

complex(Replaced one bad contactor in control panel and ten fuses on poles) 

 

 Downtown Area & Mall: Repairing conduit and outlets at George St. Parking Garage 

level 1. 

  

 

 Traffic and Street Lights: Traffic cabinet maintenance (Clean equipment, replace 

filters). Marked street lights to be repaired by Potomac Edison. Traffic light on Greene St 

and Water St in flash. Started work on traffic lights (Realigning heads from wind, 

removing bees nests from light head shades.  

 

 Load tested generators. August 29, 2019 

 

 Monthly Safety Meeting – August 10, 2019 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Police Department monthly report for August, 2019 

  









Item Attachment Documents: 

 

1. Approval of the Work Session and Executive Session Minutes of July 9, 2019 

  



1 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

Tuesday, July 9, 2019 

4:30 p.m. 

 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Seth Bernard (entered at 4:44 p.m.), 

Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, and Laurie Marchini. 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Jeffrey D. Rhodes, City Administrator; Marjorie Woodring, City Clerk; Paul 

Kelly, CEDC Executive Director; Matt Miller, CEDC Economic Development Specialist 

 

 

I. BUSINESS RETENTION, EXPANSION, AND ATTRACTION EFFORTS 

     

Matt Miller, Economic Development Specialist, went over the Business Expansion and Retention 

PowerPoint Presentation that the CEDC put together, and invited Council to come in and talk one-

on-one with him as well. 

 

Mr. Miller went through the presentation, discussing the “3 legs” of Economic Development, 

discussed the CEDC’s roll in business retention and expansion, new jobs and capital investments, 

and general statistics about focusing on current businesses to help them grow. 

 

Mr. Miller discussed the BRE Outreach Approach and Methods, strategy, and key BRE components 

like assisting with company-specific job fairs and rapid response for massive lay-offs.  He went over 

outreach methods and strategies used such as roundtables and focus groups, business meetings, 

social media, business walks, cold calls, etc.  Mr. Miller also went over the CEDC Strategic Plan’s 

Objective #5 (Execute Greater Coordination Efforts with Workforce Development) and #7 (Retain 

and Nurture Existing Businesses) from the plan. 

 

Mr. Miller went over the Manufacturing Roundtable, which highlights a solid group of businesses 

that account for approximately 7K jobs collectively.  He spoke about including core group of plant 

personnel to add to the basic conversation, and having the business representatives steer the 

conversation.  He said through that you can obtain informative data that can be used to create action 

items.  Mr. Miller went over actions items he has attained in the course of about a year and a half: 

 

 Manufacturing focused job expo in coordination with DLLR 

 Coordinated with Board of Education and invited kids from the Career Center to 

attend as well 

 Became involved with Focus on Future event to help it grow and include other 

counties 

 Attained more manufacturing and health care industry representation  



2 
 

Mr. Miller advised that the industrial maintenance curriculum at ACM directly came out of the 

roundtables, saying that manufacturers had a common issue of filling positions in an industrial 

background.  He said that through the roundtable effort, including ACM, manufacturers formed a 

subcommittee to help steer the curriculum to give correct certifications.  He added that they are 

getting ready to have their 2nd graduating class, and 20-25 people have retained a local position.  Mr. 

Miller advised that ACM has worked with National Jet and Northrup Grummond, which both have 

a high demand for machinists, and said that ACM is working with those employers to figure out 

how best to use grant monies. 

 

Paul Kelly, Executive Director of the CEDC, advised that the CEDC is part of a network that 

includes ACM and Frostburg, and other folks, with a push to immediately identify the need in an 

area and what’s missing, in terms of skills and training.  He added that ACM is adapting their 

curriculum to do just that, and the program is catching on pretty quickly.  Mr. Miller advised that 

the group has been used to assist with the Western MD Works Initiative, as well as the Workforce 

Resource Symposium. 

 

Mr. Miller discussed the top five industry needs: 

 Workforce – several initiatives – overarching need 

 Transportation – CEDC is working with the county to enhance public transportation 

 Housing – housing study – Bridges to Opportunity 

 Child Care – working with local non-profit to assist an expansion 

 Infrastructure – increased broadband connectivity 

 

Mr. Kelly advised that he and Mr. Miller try to steer discussion away from workforce and training 

when at the meetings, but it always comes back around to that. He added that businesses hopefully 

would grow if there were more amenities and attractions to keep young people in the area. 

 

The discussion turned to child care, with Mr. Miller stating that a lot of larger employers have 

attempted to install their own child care facilities on-site, but found it to be a huge expense and 

hassle. He advised that there is a local non-profit that operates a day care, and has the capacity to 

expand, and the CEDC is putting a lot of focus on helping them do so.  Mr. Kelly stated that to his 

knowledge there is no entity that has a main mission of enhancing and improving affordable child 

care in the area. Mr. Miller added that they have identified an available workforce that have to stay 

home now because it’s cost-prohibitive to go to work.  There were conversations about the YMCA 

and child care, which they do as an after-school program only, with Mr. Miller stating the CEDC 

will look into that, as well as the religious communities allowing their facilities to be used for day 

care.  Mr. Miller added that brick and mortar day care facilities are expensive and full of regulations, 

so it’s important to realize these kinds of initiatives. 

 

 

II BUSINESS WALKS, BUSINESS VISITS, AND BRE PARTNERSHIP INITIATIVES 

 

Mr. Miller spoke on Business Walks, saying this is a newer concept, which involves basically finding 

a cluster of new businesses and canvas them by walking in the door and introducing yourselves, 

and try to learn as much as you can about them.  There was discussion on the details of this strategy, 



3 
 

with Mr. Miller advising that the BRE Team would be made up of CEDC, County and State 

representatives.  He added that letters would go out prior to the walk, and the CEDC is working on 

the BRE approach for the entire area, and would be done quarterly depending on density of the 

businesses. 

 

Mr. Miller spoke next on Business Visits, saying it’s a pretty straight-forward approach, and he tries 

to do one a week in conjunction with County and State representatives.  He added the visits are pre-

planned, and they discuss issues, concerns, and help provide solutions. 

 

Mr. Miller advised on BRE Partnership Initiatives, and listed other organizations and groups that 

fall under that partnership.  He added that the CEDC stays in pretty constant contact with almost all 

of them. 

 

Mr. Kelly and Mr. Miller provided information on the Autonomous Technology Center Steering 

Committee and Mr. Miller’s involvement, and advised that there was a study of where to locate the 

Autonomous Technology Center, and said they are still trying to figure out the size of the tract of 

land needed, configuration of the land – slopes, icy roads, etc. – but there is no preferred site at this 

time.  They added that the potential is to locate it near FSU or the airport, although no site has been 

favored. 

 

Mr. Miller showed a list of CEDC Partnerships, which range from local organizations, to FSU and 

groups in Garrett County, to State agencies. He also discussed using and applying key BRE 

information for business recruitment, formation, talent attraction, etc. 

 

 

III. GOALS  - MOVING FORWARD 

 

Mr. Miller touched on some goals moving forward: the roundtable concept, business visits, 

analyzing supply chains of larger companies, actively engaging area youth, effectively marketing 

successes, and also formulating a small business BRE plan to minimize the negative impact during 

the Baltimore Street redevelopment.  He also touched on making sure the City had an adequate 

disaster relief plan. 

 

 

IV. UPDATES – M&T BANK BUILDING 

 

Mr. Kelly provided an update on the M&T Bank building, saying that the CEDC acquired the 

building the last Friday of June and they will issue a press release soon.  Mr. Kelly stated that on a 

practical level the CEDC tries to do a lot of community assistance work by connecting folks wanting 

to start a new business to proper organizations or channels, or the CEDC helps them.  

 

Mr. Kelly advised that there is a more formal association getting together in the area (Garrett, 

Bedford, Mineral, Allegany), with the goal being to use all of their assets as pull to do business 

attraction, so as not to duplicate efforts, but to consolidate them. 

 



4 
 

Mr. Kelly stated that Mr. Miller deserves a lot of credit, as he has become a “go-to” for the area, and 

many come to him for resources.  He added that Mr. Miller is fully integrated with the county and 

commerce. 

 

 

V. ADJOURNMENT 

 

With nothing further, the meeting adjourned at 5:30 p.m. into Closed Session pursuant to Section 3-

305 (b) (4) of the General Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland to discuss proposals 

for the development of the East Side School site. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Marjorie A. Woodring 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

Minutes approved ___________________________ 

 

 





















Item Attachment Documents: 

 

1. Ordinance 3859 (2nd and 3rd readings) - authorizing terms for the conveyance of 349 

Davidson Street to Venus Starr and authorizing execution of a deed to effect the transfer 

  













Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Ordinance 3860 (1st reading) - to amend Chapter 25 of the City Code to include regulations 

pertaining to small cell technology in public rights-of-way and to amend the Use 

Regulations Table accordingly 

  



ORDINANCE NO.  3860 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND, 

MARYLAND, ENTITLED “AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE TEXT OF THE 

CITY ZONING ORDINANCE (CHAPTER 25 OF THE CITY CODE) TO 

INCLUDE REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO SMALL CELL TECHNOLOGY IN 

PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY, SAID TEXT AMENDMENTS TO BE INCORPORATED 

INTO THE CITY CODE AS ARTICLE XVI OF CHAPTER 25, AND TO AMEND 

THE USE REGULATIONS TABLE SET FORTH IN SECTION 25-132 

ACCORDINGLY, BY MAKING SMALL CELL TECHNOLOGY STRUCTURES 

PERMITTED USES IN ALL ZONING DISTRICTS SUBJECT TO ARTICLE 

XVI.”  

WHEREAS, Title 4, Subtitle 2 of the Land Use Article of 

the Annotated Code of Maryland grants the Mayor and City 

Council the power to enact a zoning ordinance, to amend it 

from time to time, and to provide for its administration and 

enforcement. 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council deem it necessary 

for the purpose of promoting the health, safety, morals, 

and/or general welfare of the City to amend the City of 

Cumberland Zoning Ordinance from time to time. 

WHEREAS, in connection with the foregoing, City staff 

prepared regulations pertaining to small cell technology in 

public rights-of-way and requested that the City of 

Cumberland Municipal Planning and Zoning Commission take the 

matter under consideration and recommend that the Mayor and 

City Council approve those revisions as text amendments to 

the City’s Zoning Ordinance. Those revisions are set forth as 

an attachment to the Staff Report which is attached hereto. 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Planning and Zoning Commission 

held a public hearing on the subject matter of this Ordinance 

on April 22, 2019, at which time they voted unanimously to 

recommend that the City Council approve the text amendments 

recommended in the aforesaid Staff Report, subject to 

changing the term “Wireline Backhaul Facility” set forth in 

Section 25-101(b)18) to “Wireless Backhaul Facility.”  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council held a public 

hearing regarding the subject matter of this Ordinance on 

9/17/19, having published notice of the time and place of the 

hearing together with a summary this Ordinance in the 

Cumberland Times-News, a newspaper of general circulation in 

the City of Cumberland, once each week for two successive 

weeks (on 9/3/19 and 9/10/19), the first such notice having 

been published at least 14 days prior to the hearing, as 



required by Section 4-203(b) of the Land Use Article of the 

Annotated Code of Maryland.   

WHEREAS, consistent with the recommendation of the 

Municipal Planning and Zoning Commission, the Mayor and City 

Council have determined that they should accept said 

recommendations as provided for below.   

NOW, THEREFORE: 

SECTION 1: BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF CUMBERLAND, that the City Zoning Ordinance is hereby 

amended to include the regulations pertaining to small cell 

technology in public rights-of-way attached hereto as Article 

XVI of Chapter 25 of the City Code.  

SECTION 2: AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Use 

Regulations Table set forth in Section 25-132 shall be 

amended to reflect that small cell technology structures 

shall be permitted uses in all zoning districts. 

SECTION 3: AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this 

Ordinance shall take effect ten (10) days from the date of 

its passage.  

 

Passed this _____ day of _________________, 2019. 

 

 

      __________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

    

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CUMBERLAND PLANNING COMISSION STAFF REPORT 



Small Cell Regulations 

Zoning Text Amendment 1208 

 In order to understand how the 5G network will be constructed and what the subject of 

this staff report covers, the Planning Commission must understand what small cells are.   

The 5G small cells are low power mini base stations spread across the 
region to be served. They are basically low power wireless APs (Access 
Points) which operate in licensed spectrum. They are managed by telecom 
operators. Due to their small sizes, they can be installed easily in indoor 
places and space constrained places also. Hence they help in improving the 
cellular coverage and to fill coverage holes.  
 
Small cells are available throughout the region to be served and hence 
they maintain quality of the signal everywhere. Small cells receive the 5G 
signal from main NB and relay the same to users. When the user moves 
behind the obstacle, the cell phone automatically switches to mini Bas 
station i.e. small cell to keep the connection intact. This helps 5G users to 
avail uninterrupted 5G network coverage. The figure depicts the typical 
installed 5G network of small cells along with main 5G-NB (or 5G Base 
Station).  
 

http://www.rfwireless-world.com/Terminology/5G-Small-Cells-Basics-and-Types.html 

  The following picture from the foregoing website, in a simplistic manner, shows how 5G 

networks work. 

 

 

 



4G and prior iterations of cellular systems required large towers to transmit signal.  Although 5G 

still requires large towers to transmit signal to small cell structures, those structures are capable of 

being located within rights of way in a somewhat inobtrusive manner. 

 The following picture shows the type of small cell structures the City is most likely going to 

see within its rights of way.  Generally, there are three ways they can be deployed: by attachment 

to existing street light poles; by attachment to existing utility poles; and by means of new poles.  

The following picture shows these deployments.  

 

 

 The FCC entered a ruling requiring local governments to pass legislation aimed at speeding 

up the deployment of small cells and other 5G network equipment located within public rights of 

way.  While this ruling is in the process of being appealed, it remains in effect, at least for the time 

being.  For local governments’ purposes, compliance is mandatory.  

 Page 2 of the FCC’s Declaratory Ruling and Third Report and Order adopted September 26, 

2018 includes the following introductory statement: 

 America is in the midst of a transition to the next generation of 
wireless services, known as 5G. These new services can unleash a new 
wave of entrepreneurship, innovation, and economic opportunity for 
communities across the country. The FCC is committed to doing our part to 
help ensure the United States wins the global race to 5G to the benefit of 



all Americans. Today’s action is the next step in the FCC’s ongoing efforts 
to remove regulatory barriers that would unlawfully inhibit the 
deployment of infrastructure necessary to support these new services. We 
proceed by drawing on the balanced and commonsense ideas generated 
by many of our state and local partners in their own small 
cell bills. 

 Local governments are REQUIRED to pass legislation implementing the FCC regulations (at 

least those relative to aesthetic reviews) by April 15, 2019.  The City will not meet this deadline, 

but if the Planning Commission is inclined to recommend that the Mayor and City Council pass the 

proposed ordinance, the City Code (i.e., Chapter 25 which includes the City Zoning Ordinance) will 

be amended within what staff considers to be a safe window.  It is staff’s opinion that it is 

imperative that this Ordinance be passed as soon as possible without amendments or with minimal 

amendments that are consistent with FCC requirements so that the Mayor and City Council can 

proceed with its passage as soon as possible. 

 By way of background, the FCC rules generally provide: 

1. They will not disturb existing small cell legislation at the state level but will provide 
guidance on local reviews of small cells that can inhibit deployment. 
 

2. Local governments can charge wireless providers for the costs associated with 
reviewing small cell deployment, but excessive fees are prohibited. 
 

3. Local governments will need to conduct approval processes within 60 days for 
small cells being added to existing structures and 90 days when a provider wants 
to put up a new small cell pole. 
 

4. Local governments will be able to manage small cell deployments via “reasonable” 
aesthetic reviews. 
 

It is staff’s opinion that the proposed amendments to the text of the City’s Zoning Ordinance meets 

these requirements. 

 A Planning Commission Action is attached hereto for your use upon the conclusion of the 

April 22, 2019 hearing relative to the foregoing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Planning Commission Action 
Meeting Date: April 22, 2019 

Zoning Text Amendment 1208 
 

[   ] Recommend adoption of zoning text amendment 1208 relative to proposed small cell 
regulations as presented at the April 22, 2019 meeting, a copy of which is appended 
hereto, to the Mayor and City Council with no additional changes. 

[   ] Recommend adoption of the aforesaid zoning text amendments with the following 
changes: 

 __________________________________________________________________________ 

 __________________________________________________________________________ 

 __________________________________________________________________________ 

 __________________________________________________________________________ 

 __________________________________________________________________________ 

 __________________________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

[   ] Recommend denial of Zoning Text Amendment 1208. 

 

Motion by: __________________________________________________________________ 

Seconded by: __________________________________________________________________ 

Vote: 

 In favor of motion: _________  Opposed: _________  Abstained: 

_________ 

Number of voting members present: _________ 

 

Signed: 

________________________________________________   Date:  April 22, 
2019 

Chair, Cumberland Planning Commission 

 
________________________________________________   Date:  April 22, 

2019 
Secretary, Cumberland Planning Commission 



 

CUMBERLAND CODE – CHAPTER 25 (ZONING ORDINANCE), ARTICLE XVI  

PROPOSED ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS REGARDING SMALL CELL 

TECHNOLOGY IN PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY 

 

ARTICLE XVI. - SMALL CELL TECHNOLOGY IN PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY 

 

Sec. 25-501. – Definitions. 

(a)  General use of terms. 

(1) The terms, phrases, words, and their derivations used in this article 

shall have the meanings given in this section. 

(2) Words not defined shall be given their common and ordinary meaning. 

(b) Defined terms. 

(1) Abandoned means any Small Cell Facilities or Wireless Support 

Structures that are unused for a period of 365 days without the 

Operator otherwise notifying the City and receiving the City’s approval.

(2) Antenna means communications equipment that transmits or receives 

radio frequency signals in the provision of small cell wireless service. 

(3) Applicant means any Person applying for a Small Cell Permit hereunder. 

(4) City means Mayor and City Council of Cumberland. 

(5) Collocation or Collocate means to install, mount, maintain, modify, 

operate, or replace wireless facilities on a Wireless Support Structure. 

(6) Decorative Pole means a pole, arch, or structure other than a street 

light pole placed in the Right of Way to specifically designed and 

placed for aesthetic purposes and on which no appurtenances or 

attachments have been placed except for any of the following (a) electric 

lighting; (b) specially designed informational or directional signage; and 

(c) temporary holiday or special event attachments. 

(7) Design Guidelines means those detailed design guidelines, 

specifications and examples set forth hereinafter in section 25-504 for 

the design and installation of Small Cell Facilities and Wireless 

Support Structures, which are effective insofar as they do not conflict 

with federal and state law, rule and regulations. 

(8) Operator means a wireless service provider, cable operator, or a 

video service provider that operates a Small Cell Facility and 

provides wireless service. Operator includes a wireless service 

provider, cable operator, or a video service provider that provides 

information services as defined in the Telecommunications Act of 

1996 (47 U.S.C. 153(2)), and services that are fixed in nature or use 

unlicensed spectrum. 

(9) Permittee means the owner and/or Operator issued a Small Cell Permit 

pursuant to this article XVI of the Zoning Ordinance and the Design 

Guidelines. 

(10) Person means any natural person or any association, firm, 

partnership, joint venture, corporation, or other legally recognized 

entity, whether for-profit or not-for- profit. 

(11) Right of Way means the surface of, and the space within, through, 

on, across, above, or below, any public street, public road, public 

highway, public freeway, public lane, public path, public alley, public 

court, public sidewalk, public boulevard, public parkway, public 



drive, public easement, and any other land dedicated or otherwise 

designated for a compatible public use, which is owned or 

controlled by the City. 

(12) Small Cell Facility means a facility, excluding a satellite television dish 

antenna, established for the purpose of providing wireless voice, data 

and/or image transmission within a designated service area. A Small 

Cell Facility must not be staffed, and consists of one or more antennas 

attached to a Wireless Support Structure. An Antenna or wireless 

Antenna base station which provides wireless voice, data and image 

transmission within a designated service area as part of a Small Cell 

Facility may consist of a low-powered access node with no more than 

five watts of transmitter output power per Antenna channel, and may not 

be larger than a maximum height of three (3) feet and a maximum width 

of two (2) feet. A small cell Antenna may be installed on existing 

rooftops, structures or support structures where permitted. A Small Cell 

Facility also consists of related equipment which may be located within 

a building, an equipment cabinet outside a building, an equipment 

cabinet on a rooftop that is at least fifteen (15) feet high when in a 

commercial zone or attached to a commercial structure, or twenty (20) 

feet high when in a residential zone or attached to a residential structure, 

or an equipment room within a building. Such related equipment shall 

have a maximum square footage of ten (10) square feet and a maximum 

height of two (2) feet.  

(13) Small Cell Permit means the non-exclusive grant of authority issued by the 

City to install a Small Cell Facility and/or a Wireless Support Structure in 

a portion of the Right of Way in accordance with these guidelines. 

(14) Stealth Small Cell Wireless Facility: Any Wireless Facility that is integrated 

as an architectural feature of a structure or the landscape so that the facility 

and its purpose to provide wireless services is not visually apparent or 

prominent. 

(15) Utility Pole means a structure that is designed for, or used for the 

purpose of, carrying lines, cables, or wires for electric or 

telecommunications service. "Utility pole" excludes street signs and 

Decorative poles. 

(16) Wireless Facility means equipment at a fixed location that enables 

wireless communications between user equipment and a communications 

network, including all of the following: 

A. Any exterior facility, including an Antenna, Antenna array or other 

communications equipment. A Wireless Facility consists of one or 

more Antennas attached to a Wireless Support Structure and related 

equipment. Antennas are limited to the following types and 

dimensions: omni-directional (whip) Antennas not exceeding fifteen 

(15) feet in height and three (3) inches in diameter; directional or 

panel Antennas not exceeding six and one-half (6½) feet in height 

and two (2) feet in width. An Antenna may be mounted to a 

building, a building rooftop or a freestanding monopole. Equipment 

may be located within a building, an equipment cabinet, or an 

equipment room within a building. Where reference is made to a 

Wireless Facility, unless otherwise specified or indicated by context, 

such reference will be deemed to include the Wireless Support 

Structure on which the Antenna or other communications equipment 



is mounted, transmission cables, and any associated equipment 

shelter.  

B. The term does not include any of the following: 
1. The structure or improvements on, under, or within which 

the equipment is Collocated; 

2. Coaxial or fiber-optic cable that is between Wireless Support 

Structures or Utility poles or that is otherwise not 

immediately adjacent to or directly associated with a 

particular Antenna. 

3. Any exterior facility, including an Antenna, Antenna array or 

other communications equipment, excluding a satellite 

television dish antenna or Small Cell Facility, established for 

the purpose of providing wireless voice, data and image 

transmission within a designated service area and which 

includes equipment consisting of personal wireless services, 

as defined in the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996, 

which includes Federal Communications Commission 

licensed commercial wireless telecommunications services, 

including cellular, personal communications services (PCS), 

specialized mobile radio (SMR) enhanced specialized mobile 

radio (ESMR), and paging, as well as unlicensed wireless 

services and common carrier wireless exchange access 

services and similar services that current exist or that may in 

the future be developed.. A Wireless Facility must not be 

staffed. A Wireless Facility consists of one or more Antennas 

attached to a support structure and related equipment. 

Antennas are limited to the following types and dimensions: 

omni-directional (whip) Antennas not exceeding fifteen (15) 

feet in height and three (3) inches in diameter; directional or 

panel Antennas not exceeding six and one-half (6½) feet in 

height and two (2) feet in width. An Antenna may be 

mounted to a building, a building rooftop or a freestanding 

monopole in accordance with the subsequent sections of this 

article XVI of the Zoning Ordinance. Equipment may be 

located within a building, an equipment cabinet, or an 

equipment room within a building. Where reference is made 

to a Wireless Facility, unless otherwise specified or indicated 

by context, such reference will be deemed to include the 

Wireless Support Structure on which the Antenna or other 

communications equipment is mounted, transmission cables, 

and any associated equipment shelter. 

(17) Wireless Support Structure means a pole, such as a monopole, either 

guyed or self-supporting, street light pole, traffic signal pole, a fifteen 

(15)-foot or taller sign pole, or Utility pole capable of supporting Small 

Cell Facilities. Wireless Support Structure excludes (a) a Utility pole or 

other facility owned or operated by a municipal electric utility and (b) a 

Utility pole or other facility used to supply traction power to public 

transit systems, including railways, trams, streetcars and trolley buses. 

(18) Wireless Backhaul Facility means a facility used for the transport of 

communications service or any other electronic communications by 

coaxial, fiber-optic cable, or any other wire. 

(19) Zoning Ordinance means chapter 25 of the Cumberland City Code. 

 

Sec. 25-502. - General requirements. 

(a) Applicability of article XVI of Zoning Ordinance.  The permitting procedures and 

authorizations set forth herein in this article XVI of the Zoning Ordinance shall 

apply only to Small Cell Facilities and Wireless Support Structures in the Right of 



Way, and do not authorize the construction and operation of a Wireline 

Backhaul Facility. 

(b) General requirements. The following requirements shall apply to all Small 

Cell Facilities and Wireless Support Structures proposed within the Right of Way. 

(1) Compliance with laws.  No Person shall occupy or use the Right of Way 

except in accordance with the laws, rules and regulations of any federal, 

state or local laws, ordinances and regulations. 

(2) Prohibition of endangerment to public health, safety and welfare.  In 

occupying or using the Right of Way, a proposed Wireless Support 

Structure shall not endanger the health, safety and welfare of City residents, 

employees of the City or any other Persons.  In addition to other factors, the 

City should consider the likelihood of the failure of such structures and the 

reasonably anticipated results of such a failure.  

(3) Small Cell Permit required.  No Person shall occupy or use the Right of Way 

without first obtaining any requisite consent of the City. Before placing 

Small Cell Facilities or Wireless Support Structures in the Right of Way, 

an Operator must apply for and receive a Small Cell Permit.  

(4) Substantial impairment of use/detrimental effects on neighboring properties. 

The proposed Wireless Support Structure will not substantially impair the 

use of or prove detrimental to, neighboring properties, considering, among 

other relevant factors, the following:  

A.  The topography and elevation of the property on which such 

structure is proposed to be located and the appearance and visibility 

of such structure from neighboring and surrounding properties and 

from Rights of Way.  

B.  The location of surrounding residences, buildings, structures and 

other Rights of Way and their use.  
C.  The character of the surrounding neighborhood and the 

Comprehensive Plan recommendations for the ultimate use of 

surrounding properties. 

D.  The likelihood or interference with existing radio, television, 

telephone or microwave reception or service.  

E. The proposed Wireless Support Structure will cause no objectionable 

noise, fumes, odors, glare, physical activity or effect that would 

impair the peaceful enjoyment of neighboring properties. 

F. The proposed buildings, structures and use will be in harmony with 

the general character of the neighborhood in which they are located.  

(5)  Interference with other Small Cell Facilities.  The City will not grant a 

permit or other authority for installation of small wireless facilities if the 

City reasonably believes the proposed installation may in any way interfere 

with the use and operation of an existing and operational Small Cell 

Wireless Facility for which the City has previously issued a permit. 

(6) Interference with public safety equipment: A Small Cell Wireless Facility 

shall be operated and maintained in a manner that does not interfere with 

public safety equipment. 

(7)  Interference. The Small Cell Wireless Facility shall not interfere with City 

and public safety communication systems or area television or radio 

broadcast. 

(8)  Guy wires. A guy wire or other support wire shall not be used in connection 

with an Antenna, Antenna array, or a non-tower Wireless Support Structure 

except when used to anchor the Antenna, Antenna array, or non-tower 

supports structure to an existing building or ground to which such Antenna, 

Antenna array, or non-tower Wireless Support Structure is attached. 

(9)  City-owned poles. A Small Cell Facility shall not be attached to a City-

owned pole or other utility pole that is owned and maintained by the City 

except as may be authorized by the City Council, in their sole discretion.  

This provision shall take precedence over any provision to the contrary in 



that City Council permission is required in all instances where attachment to 

City-owned poles is sought.   

(C) Small Cell Facilities a permitted use on all public property.  Small Cell Facilities 
may be located on the exterior of public property or attached to existing Wireless 

Support Structures owned or operated by the City and such Small Cell Facilities shall 

be a permitted use in all zoning districts. The Use Regulations Table in section 25-132 

of the Zoning Ordinance shall be amended accordingly.  The terms of this subsection 

shall take precedence over all other terms to the contrary in the Cumberland City Code 

and this Zoning Ordinance. 
 

Sec. 25-503. - Application and approval process. 
(A) Pre-application conference. 

(1) The City requires pre-submittal conferences to meet with potential 

Applicants and discuss projects on a conceptual level. The conference is 

intended to identify the correct application type and content requirements 

for any given project, and also to create an informal forum in which 

Applicants and the City can discuss any concerns that should be addressed 

as soon as possible to avoid any unnecessary delays in the processing of 

an application and deployment of wireless facilities in the City. The 

requirement for a pre- submittal conference may be waived by the Director 

of Community Development or City Administrator based on necessity 

and/or prior experience with the Applicant. 

(2) An appointment is required for all pre-submittal conferences.  

(B) Application Required. Prior to installation, modification, relocation or removal of 

a Small Cell Facility, relocation or removal of an existing Wireless Support 

Structure, installation of a new Wireless Support Structure, or Collocation on an 

existing Wireless Support Structure in the Right of Way, the Operator shall apply 

to the City and receive approval from the City.  

(C) Required application materials. Unless otherwise required by state or federal 

law, the application shall be submitted to the City Administrator with the 

applicable fee and all required materials and information in accordance with the 

requirements of this Article XVI of the Zoning Ordinance and the Design 

Guidelines in order for the application to be considered complete.  The application 

shall include the following: 

(1) The applicant’s name, address, telephone number and e-mail address 

and the same information for the person who is making the application 

on behalf of the operator. 

(2) The names, addresses, telephone numbers and e-mail addresses of all 

consultants, if any, acting on behalf of the applicant with respect to the 

filing of the application. 

(3) A description of the proposed work and the purposes the Small Cell 

Wireless Facilities are intended to serve.  The scope and detail of such 

description shall be commensurate with the nature and character of the 

work to be performed 

(4) Authorization for any consultant acting on behalf of the applicant to 

speak with City officials and employees on the subject matter for 

which the consultant is employed, even if the applicant is not present. 

(5) Verification from an appropriate professional that the Small Cell 

Wireless Facility will comply with all applicable codes to address 

threats to destruction of property or injuries to persons. 

(6) Drawings and descriptions of the proposed Small Cell Wireless 

Facilities, Wireless Support Structures, and accessory equipment. 
(D) Proof of licensure/legal compliance. The applicant shall provide proof that it is a 

licensed provider and will comply with all applicable federal, state and City laws 

and regulations, including those regarding wireless communications services.  The 

Applicant shall also provide proof that it is in good standing with the state where its 



principal office is located and that it is registered to do business in the State of 

Maryland. The Applicant must maintain its good standing status and registration in 

Maryland for so long as the permit is in effect. 

(E) Application processing fee. For processing an application for consent, the City 

may charge an application fee o f  $ 5 0 0 . 0 0  for up to five (5) Small Cell 

Facilities with an additional $100.00 for each additional Small Cell Facility. 

(F) Insurance requirements.  The Applicant shall maintain general liability insurance 

coverage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 per claim and $2,000,000.00 in the 

aggregate per occurrence, which names the City as an additional insured and 

provides for advance notification to the City in the event the policy is cancelled, 

terminated or not renewed.  The Application must be accompanied by a certificate 

from the insurer evidencing these coverages and, if a Small Cell Permit is issued, 

the Operator shall produce a certificate evidencing this coverage on the annual 

anniversary of the issuance of the permit and, from time-to-time, upon the request 

of the City, in effect in such amounts and for such liability as the City may  require 

or be self-insured pursuant to the terms of this article. 

(G) Review process. 

(1) Within ten (10) days of receiving an application, the City shall determine 

and notify the applicant in writing as to: 

A. Whether the application is complete; or 

B. If the application is incomplete, the documents and/or information 

that is missing. 

(2) The City shall make its final decision to approve or deny the application 

within forty-five (45) days of the filing of the complete application.  This 

time-frame may be tolled only by agreement of the parties or if, during the 

course of the review, the City determines that additional documentation or 

information is required from the applicant, it shall be tolled from the date 

the applicant is notified through the date the applicant provides the 

documentation and/or information. 

(3) The City shall notify the applicant in writing of its final decision, and if the 

application is denied: (i) Specify the basis for denial; and (ii) Cite specific 

code provisions from federal, state, or local codes provisions as to why the 

application was denied. 

(4) Notwithstanding the initial denial, the applicant may cure any deficiencies 

identified by the City within thirty (30) days of the denial without paying 

an additional application fee, provided the City shall approve or deny the 

revised application within thirty (30) days of receipt of the amended 

application which shall be limited to the deficiencies specified in the 

original notice of denial. 

(5) If the City fails to act upon an application within the applicable time frames, 

the applicant, after providing written notice to the City that the application 

period has lapsed, shall receive a written approval notice within ten (10) 

business days.  However, if the City notifies the applicant of its decision in 

advance of the aforesaid applicant’s notice, the City’s decision shall stand. 

(6) An applicant seeking to construct, modify or replace a network of Small 

Cell Wireless Facilities may, at the applicant’s discretion, file a 

consolidated application for up to ten (10) Small Cell Wireless Facilities 

and receive a single permit for multiple Small Cell Wireless Facilities. 

(7)  Appeals to Board of Zoning Appeals.  In the event such a permit is denied or 

conditions are imposed which are not acceptable to the applicant, it shall 

have the right to appeal the decision by filing a request for such an appeal no 

later than thirty (30) days from the date of the decision.  Notice of and the 

reasons for denials shall be set forth in writing, mailed to the applicant by 

first class U.S. mail at the address set forth in its application or it may be 

hand-delivered to the applicant.  Any conditions imposed with respect to the 

issuance of a Small Cell Permit shall be clearly set forth in the permit of the 



written document serving as a permit. Delivery of the permit shall be 

effected in the same manner as notices of denial. 

 
Section 25-504. - Design guidelines. 

(A) An Antenna may be installed on streetlight or mast arms mounted on pre-existing 

poles, including utility and street light poles or other pre-existing exterior support 

structures, but the installation of taller poles or new overhead wiring to 

accommodate the Antennae will not be permitted without a special exception 

approved by the Board of Zoning Appeals. Overall, an Antenna may be installed at 

least twenty (20) feet from the ground in a residential zone or fifteen (15) feet from 

the ground in a commercial zone.  

(B)  An antenna may not be installed on or within sixty (60) feet of a single-family or 

two-family dwelling unit.  

(C) Cable connecting the antennae to the equipment box shall be contained inside the 

pole or Support Structure or shall be flush mounted and covered with a metal, 

plastic or similar material cap matching the color of the pole or structure on which it 

is installed, properly secured and maintained by the applicant.  

(A) Related unstaffed equipment cabinets shall have a maximum square footage of ten 

(10) square feet with a maximum height of two (2) feet, and must be so located and 

installed in accordance with the applicable setback and other requirements of the 

zone in which the property is classified.  

(E) An Antenna and equipment box must be installed as a Stealth Small Cell Wireless 

Facility on a property within a Historic District, and the Historic Preservation 

Commission must review such an application.  

(F) An Antenna may be located on the exterior of public property or attached to an 

existing Wireless Support Structure owned or operated by the City.  However, the 

use of any property owned or operated by the City shall be at the discretion of the 

City Council. 
(G)  Antennas shall be located and designed so as to minimize visual impact on 

surrounding properties and from public streets.  

(H) Sign prohibition.  A Small Cell Wireless Facility shall not display a sign unless the 

sign displays emergency information, owner contact information, warning 

instructions, safety instructions, or is otherwise required by a federal, state, or local 

agency. Allowed sign on a Small Cell Wireless Facility shall not exceed one (1) 

square foot in area. 

(I) Light prohibited. No lights are permitted on any monopole or Antenna unless 

required by the Federal Communications Commission, the Federal Aviation 

Administration, or the City.  

(J)  No interference with Right-of-Way. Small Cell Facilities and Wireless Support 

Structures shall be located so as not to: (i) create visual or physical obstructions or 

other conditions that are hazardous to vehicular and pedestrian traffic, including, 

but not limited to visual obstruction of traffic signals, signage or sight distances; 

and (ii) not to interfere with the use of streets, sidewalks alleys, parkways, traffic 

light poles or other light poles, and other public ways and places. 

(K) Measurement of height/maximum height.  The height of any Small Cell Wireless 

Facility or Wireless Support Structure shall be measured from the lowest point at 

which such facility or structure touches the ground; provided, that if such facility or 

structure is attached to a building and does not touch the ground, its height shall be 

measured from the lowest point at which such structure is attached to the building.  

(1) New/modified utility poles.  Each new or modified utility pole installed in 

the Right of Way shall not exceed the maximum height requirements of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 
(2) New Small Cell Wireless Facilities.  New Small Cell Wireless Facilities in 

the Right-of-Way shall not extend beyond the lesser of the following: 
A. More than ten (10) feet above an existing utility pole in the Right 

of Way in place as of the effective date of this section; or 



B. The height for a new utility pole under subsection (K)(1) of this 

section; or 

C. Such greater height as authorized under applicable federal law. 

(3)  Decorative poles. A wireless provider shall be permitted to replace a 

Decorative Pole when necessary to Collocate a Small Cell Wireless 

Facility, but any replacement pole shall conform as closely as possible to the 

design aesthetics of the Decorative Pole being replaced and all costs of 

replacement shall be borne by the wireless provider, including, 

reimbursement for the wages and benefits of City employees who were 

involved in the process. 

(4) Small Cell Wireless Facilities.  All Small Cell Wireless Facilities must 

adhere to the following height requirements, except if they conflict with 

federal law, the federal law shall control. 

A. Existing structure mount. Facilities mounted to an existing structure 

may not extend higher than ten (10) feet above the existing structure 

of the height restrictions set forth in subsection (K)(1) of this section, 

whichever is less 

B.  Roof mount. Facilities mounted on a roof shall be stepped back 

from the front façade to the extent technically feasible in order to 

limit their impact on the building's silhouette. Screening panels, if 

used, shall not exceed five (5) feet in height above the existing 

building's roofline; 

C. Side-mount. Facilities which are side-mounted on buildings shall be 

reasonably camouflaged and shall not extend above the roof line or 

extend more than two (2) feet from the facade of the building; and 

D. Miscellaneous. Except as otherwise provided herein, the maximum 

height requirements of the Zoning Ordinance shall apply. 

(L) Fencing.  A Small Cell Wireless Facility shall not be fenced. 

(M) Design. A Small Cell Wireless Facility shall be installed using stealth 

technology to the greatest extent practicable including without limitation the 

following: 

(1) Reduced visibility. Antenna arrays, cables, and other accessory facilities 

used for providing the wireless service shall not be obtrusive; 

(2) Color. The color of the facility shall be compatible with that of the non-

tower support structure. All facilities located on buildings, roofs, or 

structures shall be painted or constructed of materials to match the color 

of the structure directly behind them to reduce the visibility of the Small 

Cell Wireless Facility. 

(3) Accessory facilities. Accessory facilities mounted onto a non-tower 

support structure shall not project greater than three (3) foot, as 

measured horizontally, from the surface of the non-tower support 

structure and shall be painted or screened with materials that are a 

complementary color as the non-tower support structure. Cables shall 

travel along the exterior of a non-tower support structure. 

(N) Setbacks. A Small Cell Wireless Facility that is not in the public right-of-way 

shall comply with the building setback provisions of the zoning district in which 

the Small Cell Wireless Facility is located. In addition, the following setbacks 

shall be observed: 

(1) Street-pole-attached and new non-tower support structures shall adhere 

to roadway clear zone guidelines when constructed within the Right of 

Way; 

(2) Underground vaults or above-ground structures shall comply with the 

setback requirements of the underlying zoning district; and 

(3) Freestanding Small Cell Wireless Facilities or equipment enclosures 

shall not be located between the face of a structure and a public or 

private street, bikeway, park, or residential development. 



(O) Traffic signals. A Small Cell Wireless Facility shall not be attached to a traffic 

signal or its equipment. 

(P) Maintenance. The owner of the Small Cell Wireless Facility shall promptly: 

(1) Remove all graffiti on the particular owned Small Cell Wireless Facility 

at the owner’s expense; 

(2) Repair or replace any damaged equipment or poles, if owned by the 

small cell owner. 

 
Sec. 25-505. - Safety requirements. 

(A) Prevention of failures and accidents. Any Person who owns a Small Cell 

Facility and/or Wireless Support Structure sited in the Right of Way shall at 

all times employ ordinary and reasonable care and install and maintain in use 

industry standard technology for preventing failures and accidents which are 

likely to cause damage, injury, or nuisance to the public. 

(B) Compliance with fire safety and FCC regulations. Small Cell Facilities, wires, 

cables, fixtures, and other equipment shall be installed and maintained in 

substantial compliance with the requirements of the National Electric Code, all 

FCC, state, and local regulations, and in such manner that will not interfere with 

the use of other property. 

(C) Changes in state or federal standards and regulations. If state or federal 

standards and regulations are amended, the owners of the Small Cell Facilities 

and/or Wireless Support Structures governed by this article XVI of the Zoning 

Ordinance shall bring any facilities and/or structures into compliance with the 

revised standards and regulations within six (6) months of the effective date of 

the standards and regulations, unless a different compliance schedule is 

mandated by the regulating agency. Failure to bring Small Cell Facilities 

and/or Wireless Support Structures into compliance with any revised 

standards and regulations shall constitute grounds for removal at the owner's 

expense. 

(D) Indemnification. Operators who own or operate Small Cell Facilities or 

Wireless Support Structures in the Right of Way shall indemnify, protect, 

defend, and hold the City and its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, 

and volunteers harmless against any and all claims, lawsuits, judgments, 

costs, liens, losses, expenses, fees to include reasonable attorney fees and costs 

of defense, proceedings, actions, demands, causes of action, liability and suits 

of any kind and nature, including personal or bodily injury or death, property 

damage or other harm for which recovery of damages is sought, to the extent 

that it is caused by the negligence of the Operator who owns or operates 

Small Cell Facilities and wireless service in the Right of Way, any agent, 

officer, director, representative, employee, affiliate, or subcontractor of the 

Operator, or their respective officers, agents, employees, directors, or 

representatives while installing, repairing, or maintaining facilities in the Right 

of Way. 

(E) Removal. Every Small Cell Wireless Facility must be removed at the cost of the 

Operator or owner when it is no longer in use or when it has not been operated 

for a continuous period of six (6) months. Such a facility must be removed 

within ninety (90) days after receiving a removal notice from the City.  

(F) Surety bond or equivalent financial tool for cost of removal. An Operator or 

owner must procure and provide to the City a bond, or must provide proof of 

an equivalent financial mechanism, to ensure compliance with all provisions of 



this article. The bond must be maintained for as long as the Operator or owner 

has Small Cell Facilities and/ or Wireless Support Structures located in the 

Right of Way or on other City-owned property. The bond or equivalent 

financial method must specifically cover the cost of removal of unused or 

Abandoned Small Cell Facilities and/ or Wireless Support Structures or 

damage to City property caused by an Operator or its agent of each Small Cell 

Facility and/ or Wireless Support Structure in case the City has to remove or 

pay for its removal. Two acceptable alternatives to a bond include a funds set-

aside and a letter of credit.  The particular form of any bond, funds set-aside 

documentation or letter of credit is subject to the approval of the City’s attorney. 

 
Sec. 25-506. - Installation and inspection. 

A. Completion within 180 days. The Collocation or new Wireless Support 

Structure for which a Small Cell Permit is granted shall be completed 

within 180 days after issuance of the Small Cell Permit unless the City and 

the Applicant agree to extend this period. The City will agree to an extension if 

the delay is caused by (a) make-ready work for a City-owned Wireless Support 

Structure, or (b) the lack of commercial power or backhaul availability at the 

site, provided that the Operator has made a timely request within sixty (60) 

days after the issuance of the Small Cell Permit for commercial power or 

backhaul services. The additional time to complete installation may not exceed 

a total of 300 days after the issuance of the Small Cell Permit. 



B. Procedure for request for extension of time. In situations when completion will 

not occur within 180 days after issuance of the Small Cell Permit, the Applicant 

may request an extension of time. Such extension request must include the length 

of time being requested and the reason for the delay. The extension request must 

be filed with the City Administrator. 

 
Section 25-507. - General provisions. 

A. As-Built Maps and Records. 

(1) The Operator shall maintain accurate maps and other appropriate records, 

including an inventory, of its Small Cell Facilities and Wireless Support 

Structures as they are actually constructed in the Right of Way or any other 

City-owned property. The inventory shall include GIS coordinates, date of 

installation, type of Wireless Support Structure used for installation, 

Wireless Support Structure owner and description/type of installation for 

each Small Cell Facility and Wireless Support Structure. 

(2) The Operator shall provide a cumulative inventory of its Small Cell Facilities 

and Wireless Support Structures as they are actually constructed in the Right 

of Way or any other City-owned property within thirty (30) days of any City 

request therefor. Concerning Small Cell Facilities and Wireless Support 

Structures that become inactive, the inventory shall include the same 

information as active installations in addition to the date the Small Cell 

Facility and/or Wireless Support Structure was deactivated and the date the 

Small Cell Facility and/or Wireless Support Structure was removed from 

the Right of Way. The City may compare the inventory to its records to 

identify any discrepancies. 

B. Generally Applicable Health and Safety Regulations. All Small Cell Facilities and 

Wireless Support Structures shall be designed, constructed, operated and 

maintained in compliance with all generally applicable federal, state, and local 

health and safety regulations, including without limitation all applicable regulations 

for human exposure to RF emissions. 

 

Sec. 25-508. - Annual collocation fee. 
 For each attachment of a Small Cell Facility to a Wireless Support Structures owned or 

operated by the City or located in the Right of Way, the City may charge the Operator an annual 

fee of $270.00 for attachment to a Wireless Support Structure in the Right of Way or for the right to 

access a Small Cell Facility in the Right of Way, subject to such restrictions as may be required by 

the City’s Director of Public Works. 

 
Sec. 25-509. - Liability and signal interference. 

A. No Liability. The City shall not be liable to the Operator by reason of inconvenience, 

annoyance or injury to the Small Cell Facilities, Wireless Support Structures, and related 

ground or pole-mounted equipment or activities conducted by the Operator 

therefrom, arising from the necessity of repairing any portion of the Right of Way, 

or from the making of any necessary alteration or improvements in or to any portion of 

the Right of Way or in or to the City’s fixtures, appurtenances or equipment. 

B. Signal Interference Prohibited. In the event an Operator’s Small Cell Facility 

interferes with the public safety radio system, or the City's or State of Maryland’s 



traffic signal system, the Operator shall, at its cost, immediately cooperate with the City 

to either rule out t h e  Operator as the interference source or eliminate the 

interference. Cooperation with the City may include, but shall not be limited to, 

temporarily switching the transmission equipment on and off for testing.  The Operator 

shall reimburse the City for employee wages and benefits to the extent City employees 

are involved in issues pertaining to signal interference. 

 
Sec. 25-510. - Requirements for removal, replacement, maintenance and repair. 

A. Replacement of municipal-owned wireless support structure. 

(1) When necessary to accommodate Small Cell Facility. The City may 

require, in response to an application to Collocate a Small Cell Facility on 

a City-owned Wireless Support Structure, the replacement or modification 

of the Wireless Support Structure at the Operator’s cost if the City 

determines that replacement or modification is necessary for compliance 

with construction and safety standards. Such replacement or modification 

shall conform to the Design Guidelines. The City may retain ownership of 

the replacement or modified Wireless Support Structure. 

(2) Accommodation of reservation of space for future public safety or 

transportation uses. If the City has reserved space for future public safety or 

transportation uses on the City-owned Wireless Support Structure, the 

replacement or modification must accommodate the future use. 

B. Removal or relocation required for City project. 

(1) The Operator shall remove and relocate the permitted Small Cell Facility 

and/or Wireless Support Structure at the Operator’s sole expense to 

accommodate construction of a public improvement project by the City. 

(2) If a n  Operator fails to remove or relocate the Small Cell Facility and/or 

Wireless Support Structure or portion thereof as requested by the City 

within 120 days of the City’s notice, then the City shall be entitled to 

remove the Small Cell Facility and/or Wireless Support Structure, or portion 

thereof at the Operator’s sole cost and expense, without further notice to the 

Operator. 

(3) The Operator shall, within thirty (30) days following the issuance of an 

invoice for the same, reimburse the City for its reasonable expenses incurred 

in the removal (including, without limitation, overhead and storage 

expenses) of the Small Cell Facilities and/or Wireless Support Structure, or 

portion thereof.  The Operator shall be liable for the City’s collection costs, 

including but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs and 

litigation expenses. 

C. Removal required by City for safety and imminent danger reasons. 

(1) An Operator shall, at its sole cost and expense, promptly disconnect, 

remove, or relocate the applicable Small Cell Facility and/or Wireless 

Support Structure within the time frame and in the manner required by the 

City if the City reasonably determines that the disconnection, removal, or 

relocation of any part of a Small Cell Facility and/or Wireless Support 

Structure (a) is necessary to protect public property or the public health, safety 

or welfare, or (b) the Operator fails to obtain all applicable licenses, 



permits, and certifications required by law for its Small Cell Facility and/or 

Wireless Support Structure. 

(2) If the City Administrator reasonably determines that there is imminent 

danger to the public, then the City may immediately disconnect, remove, 

or relocate the applicable Small Cell Facility and/or Wireless Support 

Structure at the Operator’s sole cost and expense. 

D. Removal/abandonment of facilities. 

(1) An Operator shall remove Small Cell Facilities and/or Wireless Support 

Structures when such facilities are Abandoned regardless of whether or not 

it receives notice from the City. Unless the City sends notice that removal 

must be completed immediately to ensure public health, safety, and 

welfare, the removal must be completed within the earlier of s i x t y  

( 60) days of the Small Cell Facility and/or Wireless Support Structure 

being Abandoned, or within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice from 

the City. When an Operator abandons permanent structures in the Right of 

Way, the Operator shall notify the City in writing of such Abandonment and 

the location and description of each Small Cell Facility and/or Wireless 

Support Structure Abandoned. Prior to removal, the Operator must make 

application to the City and receive approval for such removal. The City 

may require the Operator to complete remedial measures necessary for 

public safety and the integrity of the Right of Way. 

(2) The City may, at its option, allow a Wireless Support Structure to remain in 

the Right of Way and coordinate with the owner to transfer ownership of 

such Wireless Support Structure to the City, instead of requiring the owner 

and/or Operator to remove such Wireless Support Structure. 

E. Restoration. A n  Operator shall repair any damage to the Right of Way, any 

facilities located within the Right of Way, and/or the property of any third party 

resulting from the Operator’s removal or relocation activities (or any other of 

Operator’s activities hereunder) within ten (10) calendar days following the date 

of such removal or relocation, at t h e  Operator’s sole cost and expense. 

Restoration of the Right of Way and such property must be to substantially the 

same condition as it was immediately before the date Operator was granted a Small 

Cell Permit for the applicable location, or did the work at such location (even if 

Operator did not first obtain a Small Cell Permit). This includes, but is not limited 

to, restoration or replacement of any damaged trees, shrubs, or other vegetation. 

Such repair, restoration and replacement shall be in accordance with any City 

standards and subject to its the sole reasonable approval. 

 
Sec. 25-511. - Effect of partial invalidity. 

 The provisions of this article XVI of the Zoning Ordinance are hereby declared to be 

severable, and if any section, subsection, or clause of this article is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such a ruling shall not affect the other 

portions of this article that can be given effect.  Further, to the extent that any such provision is 

otherwise severable, a court of competent jurisdiction may reform that provision to effect the intent 

of the City if it is possible to do so in such a manner that the resulting provision would not be 

severable. 

 



Sec. 25-512. – Penalty. 
(A) Failure to comply with any provision of this ar t icle shall be a municipal 

infraction, subject to a fine in the amount of $250.00 per day for each day the 

violation continues. 

(B) In addition to the fine, the City may revoke the Small Cell Permit(s) which 

is/are the subject of the municipal infraction, it  may request injunctive 

relief to compel performance of the violated provision, and it may pursue any and 

all remedies which may be available to it at law or in equity.  These remedies are 

cumulative. 

 
 

 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,532 - authorizing the Chief of Police to accept a FY20 MCSS School Safety Traffic 

Safety Grant in the amount of $10,640 to support police overtime in monitoring school 

bus routes and deterring unsafe traffic behavior 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,532                    DATE:       October 1, 2019_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Chief of Police be and is hereby authorized to accept a FY20 School 

Traffic Safety Enforcement Grant made available through the Maryland Center for 

School Safety (MCSS), in the amount of Ten Thousand, Six Hundred and Forty Dollars 

and No Cents ($10,640.00) to provide overtime funding to be used for monitoring school 

bus routes and deterring unsafe traffic behavior.   

 

 

 

     ____________________________________ 
      Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 

 

 
 

 



Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: October 1, 2019 

Agenda Item Number: FY20 School Traffic Safety Enforcement Grant 

Key Staff Contact: Chief Charles H. Hinnant/Capt. Chuck Ternent 

 

Item Title: 

FY20 School Traffic Safety Enforcement Grant 

 

Summary: 

Authorize the Chief of Police to accept a Maryland Center for School Safety Grant for FY20 in the 

amount of $10,640.00 to be used for police overtime monitoring school bus routes and deterring unsafe 

traffic behavior. 

  

Issues and Considerations: 

Enter Text Here 

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?  □ Yes   □  No 

Budget: Enter Text Here 

Value of award: $10,640 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    □  No 

Is there grant funding being used?  X  Yes    □  No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  □  Yes    X No   

Match provisions: Enter Text Here 

Is this a sole source purchase?  □  Yes    □  No    (If so, attach department recommendation and approval 

from City Administrator.) 

  





Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,533 - authorizing the Chief of Police to accept a FY20 Maryland Highway Safety 

Office (MHSO) Traffic Safety Grant in the amount of $3000 for police overtime support 

concentrating on distracted driving and DUI enforcement for the project period 10/1/19 - 

9/30/20 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  ____________                    DATE:       October 1, 2019 _ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Chief of Police be and is hereby authorized to execute a Project 

Agreement by and between the Cumberland Police Department and the Maryland Highway 

Safety Office of the State Highway Administration (MHSO) to accept a FY20 Maryland 

Highway Safety Grant for Three Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($3,000.00) for police 

overtime support concentrating on distracted driving and DUI enforcement for the project 

period October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

       Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Project Nos. LE-Cumberland PD-2020-050 

                      LE-Cumberland PD-2020-051 
 



Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: October 1, 2019 

Agenda Item Number: FY20 Maryland Highway Safety Office Traffic 

Safety Grant 

Key Staff Contact: Chief Charles H. Hinnant/Capt. Chuck Ternent 

 

Item Title: 

FY20 Maryland Highway Safety Office Traffic Safety Grant 

 

Summary: 

Authorize the Chief of Police to accept a Maryland Highway Safety Office grant for FY20 in the amount 

of $3,000 for police overtime concentrating on Distracted Driving and DUI Enforcement. 

  

Issues and Considerations: 

Enter Text Here 

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?  □ Yes   □  No 

Budget: Enter Text Here 

Value of award: $3,000 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    □  No 

Is there grant funding being used?  X  Yes    □  No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  □  Yes    X No   

Match provisions: Enter Text Here 

Is this a sole source purchase?  □  Yes    □  No    (If so, attach department recommendation and approval 

from City Administrator.) 

  







Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,534 - accepting the proposal of FESCO Emergency Sales, provided through the H-

GAC Cooperative Purchasing Program (Bid No. AM10-18), to remount the 2011 Horton 

Model 603 Ambulance on a 2020 Ford F-550 4x4 Cab and Chassis per Selected Feature 

List 15174 dated September 23, 2019, for a total delivered price of $178,375 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,534                     DATE:       October 1, 2019__ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT the proposal of FESCO Emergency Sales, 710 Troy Hill Drive, Elkridge, 

Maryland, 21075, provided through the HGAC Cooperative Purchasing Program 

(HGAC Bid No. AM10-18), to remount the Cumberland Fire Department’s 2011 Horton 

Model 603 Ambulance on a 2020 Ford F-550 4x4 cab and chassis, per Selected Feature 

List 15174 dated September 23, 2019, for a total delivered price of One Hundred Seventy-

eight Thousand, Three Hundred Seventy-five Dollars and No Cents ($178,375.00) is 

hereby accepted. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 
Funding: 

001.043.64000 

 

 









































Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,535 - authorizing the execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging that 

the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by Ruth Clark pertaining to 308 

Woodside Drive has been fully paid and satisfied 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,535                     DATE:    October 1, 2019 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a Certificate of 

Satisfaction acknowledging that the indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by 

Ruth Clark, pertaining to 308 Woodside Drive and dated December 2, 1997 (Allegany 

County Land Records Book 656, Page 348), has been fully paid and satisfied and the lien 

of the Deed of Trust is hereby released. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

















Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,536 - authorizing Special Taxing District residential exemptions for the 2019/2020 

tax year for properties 49-59 North Centre Street ($964.33) and 101 South Centre Street 

($171.34) 

  



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,536                   DATE:     October 1, 2019 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the following Residential Exemptions from the Special Taxing District 

Levy for the 2019-2020 tax years be and is hereby granted: 

 

Property  / Owner Tax Year / Account No. Exemption 

Amt. 

49-59 N. Centre St. – Shirley Giarritta 2019-2020    Tax No. 14-0049554P $964.33 

101 S. Centre St. – Julianne Hagan 2019-2020    Tax No. 040165724S $171.34 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that this exemption is hereby granted pursuant to 

the provisions of Section 235 of the City Charter. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 









Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,537 - accepting the proposal from McNees Wallace & Nurick LLC to provide legal 

services to the City to address matters before the PA Public Utility Commission and the 

PA Department of Environmental Protection, and authorizing execution of 

documentation to formalize acceptance of the proposal 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,537                     DATE:       October 1, 2019_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the proposal from McNees Wallace & Nurick LLC, 100 Pine Street, PO 

Box 1166, Harrisburg, PA 17108-1166, to provide legal services for the Mayor and City 

Council of Cumberland to address matters before the PA Public Utility Commission and 

the PA Department of Environmental Protection be and is hereby accepted; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that documentation formalizing acceptance of the 

proposal may be executed by the Mayor and/or City Administrator.  

 

 

 

     ____________________________________ 
      Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 

 

 
 

 









Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,538 - amending Order No. 26,425 to increase the time frame and designated area to 

be subject to Section 11-113 of the City Code, entitled "Open Containers of Alcohol," to 

accommodate events in the downtown, notwithstanding that open glass containers shall 

not be permitted; the extended area shall include an additional portion of Baltimore Street 

and an additional portion of Centre Street, and the time frame shall be from 111:00 AM 

through 9:00 PM    

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,538                     DATE:       October 1, 2019_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the provisions of Section 11-113 of the City Code, entitled “Open 

Containers of Alcohol,” previously lifted on Saturday, October 12, 2018, by Order No. 

26,425, be and are hereby amended to increase the timeframe to the period of 11:00 AM 

through 9:00 PM and to extend the designated area to include an additional portion of 

Baltimore Street and an additional portion of Centre Street, as shown on the attached 

map; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that open glass containers shall not be permitted 

in the defined area.    

 

 

 

     ____________________________________ 
      Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 

 

 

*Map Attached 

 



FALL FOR DOWNTOWN CUMBERLAND FESTIVAL 
REVISION  REQUEST IS FOR SATURDAY OCTOBER 12TH ONLY 

 
REQUEST:  

#1  EXTEND THE EXISTING OPEN CARRY AREA ON  BALTIMORE STREET, 3/4TH OF A BLOCK EAST TO ALLEGANIA RESTAURANT/ CVS 
AREA TO ACCOMMODAYE THE 1812 FIRE BUS AS A VENDOR FOR THE FESTIVAL, SPECIFICALLY FOR THE JAYCEES CORNHOLE  

TOURNAMENT FUNDRAISER THAT WILL TAKE PLACE IN THAT AREA.   
#2  EXTEND THE OPEN CARRY AREA FROM EXISTING LINE AT BALTIMORE STREET TO THE AREA AT MEZZOS  (ALLEY) TO PARTNER 

THE FESTIVAL WITH THE PATTY PALOOZA CANCER BENEFIT  ON THE 12TH.    
 
 
 
 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,539 - lifting the provisions of Section 11-113 of the Code, entitled "Open Containers 

of Alcohol," on Saturday, October 5, 2019, from 4 PM until 2 AM, on Pershing Street 

from Mechanic Street to the parking lot at Merchants Alley, to accommodate the 10th 

year anniversary celebration for Niner's Canal Pub, notwithstanding that open glass 

containers shall not be permitted 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,539                     DATE:       October 1, 2019_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the provisions of Section 11-113 of the City Code, entitled “Open 

Containers of Alcohol,” be and are hereby lifted from 4:00 PM until 2:00 AM on 

Saturday, October 5, 2019, on Pershing Street from Mechanic Street to the parking lot at 

Merchants Alley to accommodate the 10th year anniversary celebration for Niner’s Canal 

Pub; and  

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that open glass containers shall not be permitted 

in the defined area.    

 

 

 

     ____________________________________ 
      Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 





Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,540 - accepting the sole source proposal from Safe Slide Restoration to resurface the 

large blue slide at Constitution Park with Gel Coat in the amount not to exceed $25,400 

  



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,540                     DATE:       October 1, 2019_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the sole source proposal from Safe Slide Restoration, PO Box 186, 

Frederickstown, MO, 63645,  to resurface the large blue slide at Constitution Park with 

Gel Coat be and is hereby accepted in the amount not to exceed Twenty-five Thousand, 

Four Hundred Dollars ($25,400.00).  

 

 

 

     ____________________________________ 
      Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 

 

 
 

 



Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: October 1, 2019 

Agenda Item Number: Order 26,540 

Key Staff Contact: Kim Root 

 

Item Title: 

Sole Source Award to Safe Slide Restoration for resurfacing of the large blue slide at Constitution Park 

 

Summary: 

It is staff’s recommendation to execute a Safe Slide Restoration agreement to have the large blue slide at 

Constitution Park striped of the current material, completely prepped for a new surface, and installation of 

a new gel surface.   

The slide is structurally sound but needs pump repairs and resurfacing before the start of the new season.  

Bowers funding will be used to help with the cost of these repairs as well as the cost of replacement of the 

dual slide, which has passed its useful life. 

  

Issues and Considerations: 

Enter Text Here 

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?  X Yes   □  No 

Budget: 115.099J.63000 

Value of award: $25,400 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    □  No 

Is there grant funding being used?  □  Yes     X No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  □  Yes    □  No   

Match provisions: Enter Text Here 

Is this a sole source purchase?  X  Yes    □  No    (If so, attach department recommendation and approval 

from City Administrator.) 

  



                          
                                                         Dale Cooper LLC DBA Safe Slide Restoration   

                                                             P.O. Box 186, Fredericktown, MO 63645 

                                                                                855.639.7543 

                                                                         www.safeslides.com 

           August 5th, 2019    

       

Constitution Park Pool / Attn: Kim Root 

Fort Avenue / Cumberland, Maryland 21502 

301-759-6600 / kim.root@cumberlandmd.gov 

 

 

Hello Kim, 

The following is a proposal/contract for the restoration of your slide. This proposal is based on the dimensions you 

sent us on January 5th, 2018.  Our company is certified in fiberglass composites by the American Composite 

Manufacturer’s Association (ACMA). We have over 20-years of experience working with fiberglass and gel coat.  

 

                                  We Have The Industry’s Best Warranties  

 
➢ There is a 5 - year warranty on the paint for adhesion.  

➢ There is a 5 - year warranty on the structural fiberglass repair not to delaminate.  

➢ There is a 5 – year warranty on the gel coat. With yearly maintenance plan 

               
 

                                                 Unique Restoration System 
 

       Products                                              Processes                                         People  

Superior Products                                         Documented Procedures                Unmatched Certifications 

Industry Proven                                            Consistent & Standards                 ACMA, NACE, OSHA, Non-Slip 

Chosen by Performance not Price                Safety Standards                            Experience: 120 Projects Last Year 

                                                                      Proper PPE 

 

                                                                     Guarantees 
                                                 All Project Managers are ACMA Certified 

                                                 Gel Coat Thickness Meets OEM Standards  

                                                                    Meeting Deadlines  

                                                                          Responsive 



               

Slide Description:  

 Miracle Rainbow Bend Open Flume Body Slide - Blue   

       

   Work Description:          

      Gel Coat - Interior:               

➢ Remove failed coating 

➢ Repair all minor structural repairs in ride path* (minor repair does not require laminating) 

➢ All repairs will be done with vinyl-ester resin 

➢ Prepare interior ride path for Gel Coat 

➢ Lay non-skid at start tub if needed 

➢ Refinish interior ride path of slide with Gel Coat 

➢ Gel Coat will be applied to a thickness of 18 - 24 mils.  

➢ Premium Gel Coat will be used 

➢ Recaulk all seams (recaulking is not a guarantee to stop leaking seams) ** 

➢ Seams will be sealed with premium caulk               

➢ Gel coat RAL color: ______________________________                  INIT: ________  

 

 

 

Project Amount: ………………………………………………………………. $ 25,400.00 

       

 
 

 



*Structural repair is defined as any damage that is an obvious threat to the guests, (i.e. a chip or scrape with a 

sharp edge). This is not to be confused with cosmetic repair, (i.e. a spider crack with no flaking or raised edge).  

 

If there are any chip repairs and gel coat is required; we are certified in field color-matching for gel coat. This is 

not to be confused with manufacturer’s exact color matching. If there are any previous coatings; Safe Slide 

Restoration does not warranty any substrates previously coated after the manufacture’s original coating, or any 

previous repairs.  There will be an additional charge for failed coatings. Recaulking seams does not apply if the 

seams are fiberglassed over. If we are repairing leaking seams the customer is responsible for identifying the 

leaking seams. The cost of a lift is not included in the above pricing. If a lift is needed, we are not responsible 

for any broken concrete. Sometimes slides require a second coat of paint to achieve the desired finish. If a 

second coat of paint is required there will be an additional charge of 50 % of the original paint price. The 

pricing does not include the cost of state taxes or licenses, if required. 

               

Safe Slide Restoration reserves the right to have adequate access to the project area to complete the project as 

efficiently as Safe Slide Restoration deems possible. This may require, but not limited to: working 12 hours a 

day / seven days a week. The park is responsible to provide an adequate water source and electric power for the 

duration of the job. 

 

50% - due before project starts   

50% - due upon completion 

 

After 30 days, an additional 5% will be added to the unpaid amount, and every 30 days thereafter that the 

payment is late. The park is responsible for any legal fees necessary to collect payment. 

 

Signatures: 

 

 

Business Name: _________________________________________ Date: ___________________ 

 

Print: __________________________________________________          Date: ___________________ 

 

 

 

Safe Slide Restoration: ____________________________________ Date: ___________________ 

 

Print:___________________________________________________         Date: ____________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Terms & Conditions 

 

*Structural repair is defined as any damage that is an obvious threat to the guests, (i.e. a chip or gouge with a 

sharp edge). This is not to be confused with cosmetic repair, (i.e. a spider crack with no flaking or raised edge). 

This does not include any major repairs that require fiberglass cloth and resin lamination. 

** Because of the restrictions of our caulk being able to adhere to joints without the proper amount of surface 

area, we require that the seams are 3/16” wide to caulk them (If the seams to tight the caulk will not adhere). 

 

Customer Expectations 

Safe Slide Restoration reserves the right to have adequate access to the project area to complete the project as efficiently 

as Safe Slide Restoration deems necessary. This may require, but not limited to: working 12 hours per day / seven days a 

week. The park is responsible to provide an adequate water source (5 gallons per minute), electrical power (multiple 

circuits will be needed), and restroom facilities for the duration of the job.  If there are any chip repairs and gel coat is 

required; we are capable of doing in field color-matching for gel coat.  Safe Slide technicians will tint the gel coat to 

match the existing gel coat (This is not to be confused with manufacturer’s exact color matching).  Customer has the right 

to request a draw down if request is made 45 days before Safe Slide arrives.  Recaulking seams does not apply if the 

seams are fiberglassed over.  This Agreement shall be construed and governed by the laws of the State of Missouri.  The 

parties agree that in the event any action is brought to enforce any terms of this Agreement or for damages for breach of 

the Agreement, the venue for such cause of action shall be Madison County, Missouri Circuit Court. 

 

Customer Responsibilities 

  If we are repairing leaking seams the customer is responsible for identifying the leaking seams by labeling seams on the 

interior and exterior of slide (we recommend using a permanent marker in the ride path to label seams).  Customer is 

responsible for identifying areas where lift cannot operate.  If a lift is needed, we are not responsible for any broken  

concrete, landscaping, etc.  Safe Slide may request the removal of fencing to allow a lift to access the water slide area  

(if there isn’t access through gate opening).  Customer is responsible for providing waste removal.  The customer is 

 required to access to restrooms for entirety of project. A walk through of finished work as well as a sign-off is required before 

our staff leaves the job site.  Missing the post project walk through is equivalent to an approved sign off by the customer.  Safe 

Slide Restoration will not be responsible for 

 unscheduled return work in the case that the customer misses scheduled post project walk-through and subsequent sign-off.  

 

Possible Additional Charges/Non-Warranty Items 

We do not warranty wet coring or wet substrates. There will be an additional charge for interior or exterior failed coatings.  

If there are any previous interior or exterior coatings; Safe Slide Restoration does not warranty any substrates previously 

coated after the manufacturer’s original coating, or any previous repairs. The pricing above does not include the cost of 

state taxes, licenses, or permits if required.  Sometimes slides require a second coat of paint to achieve the desired finish.  

If a second coat of paint is required there will be an additional charge of 50% of the original paint price.  A 2-3-point Tie-

off system on top portion of closed flume slide may be needed if a lift is inaccessible.  A cost of $90 per panel will be 

assessed and tie offs will stay in place for customer use.  An additional daily fee may be assessed if the project site is 

compromised due to negligence of customer or persons under the customer’s control of on said project site.  If the 

customer does not show up and needs to postpone the post job walk through, there will be an additional charge for the 

delay.  This will be determined by how long Safe Slide must stay on site in order to get the walk-through and sign-off 

which is required before our staff leaves the site.  The cost of a lift is not included in the above pricing.  If a lift is 

required, it will be the responsibility of the park to provide.   

 

Confidentiality Agreement 

The information in this document is confidential to the person to whom it is addressed and should not be disclosed 

to any other person. It may not be reproduced in whole, or in part, nor may any of the information contained 

therein be disclosed without the prior written consent of the directors of Safe Slide Restoration. 

 
                                                                         



9/27/2019 City of Cumberland, MD Mail - Re: Sole Source Approval

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=487f98bc6d&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A1645847652672037510&simpl=msg-f%3A16458476526… 1/1

Kim Root <kim.root@cumberlandmd.gov>

Re: Sole Source Approval
Jeff Rhodes <jeff.rhodes@cumberlandmd.gov> Fri, Sep 27, 2019 at 12:43 PM
To: Kim Root <kim.root@cumberlandmd.gov>
Cc: Margie Woodring <margie.woodring@cumberlandmd.gov>

Kim,

I am OK with it but a sole source purchase over $25,000 must be approved by the M&CC.  Do you plan to have an
agenda item for them to approve Tuesday?

Jeff

Jeffrey D. Rhodes 
City Administrator
City of Cumberland, Maryland
301-759-6424

On Thu, Sep 26, 2019 at 3:41 PM Kim Root <kim.root@cumberlandmd.gov> wrote:
I am requesting a sole source approval in the amount of $25,400 for Safe Slide Restoration.  The work will be to
re gel coat the Large Blue Slide at Constitution Park Pool.  The reason for the sole source request is due to the
time line needed to complete the slide and the company qualifications for the work of the Safe Slide Company. 
Safe Slide Restoration will be providing a complete refinish of the slide due to a poor previous job.  

Kim Root
Contract Labor Compliance Specialist
City of Cumberland, MD
W: (301) 759-6600 I F:(301) 759-6608
57 N. Liberty Street, Cumberland, MD 21502



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Order 26,541 - accepting the sole source proposal from Flowbird Urban Intelligence to 

provide four (4) parking kiosks for the Center City and Frederick St. Parking Garages and 

one (1) "Pay & Display" parking meteer for Lot No. 1 in the amount not to exceed 

$35,351.60  

  



Council Agenda Summary  
Meeting Date: October 1, 2019 

Agenda Item Number: Enter Text Here 

Key Staff Contact: Kim Root 

 

Item Title: 

Sole Source Award to Flowbird for Parking Kiosk  

 

Summary: 

Execute Flowbird Urban Intelligence quote for the purchase of 4 parking kiosks for the Centre City 

Parking Garage and the Frederick Street Parking Garage.  Also, one pay to display parking meter for lot 

1.  These kiosks will all operate on the same system currently used throughout the City for parking.  The 

sole source price is for $35,351.60 for year one.  Your two and three will be $4,836 added to our annual 

fee for the WebOffice and Credit Card in and Out WebOffice.   

  

 

Issues and Considerations: 

This quote includes a discount per cabinet for the Credit card in and out kiosks.  This was offered to the 

City at a $300 savings per kiosk for using refurbished cabinets.   

Fiscal Impact: 

Is this item budgeted?  X Yes   □  No 

Budget: 020.095.64000 

Value of award: $35,351.60 

If item is not budgeted, does the budget need to be appropriated?   □  Yes    □  No 

Is there grant funding being used?  □  Yes     X No   

If grant funding is being used, does it require a City match?  □  Yes    x  No   

Match provisions: Enter Text Here 

Is this a sole source purchase?  X  Yes    □   

  



 

 

Flowbird - Confidential Quotation 
For: Cumberland, MD 

Quote Issued: September 27, 2019   Quote Expires: November 29, 2019 
Quote Name: Cumberland - Garage CWT Quote ID: 506 

General Information  

Bill To: Contact: 
Cumberland, MD Cumberland, MD 
57 N  Liberty Street 
Cumberland, Maryland 21502 

    

  
Prepared By: Prepared For: 
Natalie Snow Kim Root 
  
 

Equipment 
 

       
 
Product Name 

 
Quantity 

Unit 
Price 

Year One 
Total 

Year Two 
Total 

Year Three 
Total 

CWT Credit / Debit Card Pay Station 
Color: Black 
Power:  A/C (6) 
Payment Methods: Credit/Debit Card 
Configuration:  
Warranty: 13-month Hardware Warranty 

4 $5,800.00 $23,200.00   

CWTC Touch S4 
Color: Black 
Power:  A/C (6) 
Payment Methods: Credit/Debit Card 
Configuration:  
Warranty: 13-month Hardware Warranty 

4 $0.00 $0.00   

Printer discount 
 

2 ($175.00) ($350.00)   

Refurbished ADA Cabinet Discount 
 

5 ($300.00) ($1,500.00)   

I/O Board 
 

4 $601.40 $2,405.60   

CWT Credit /Debit Card and Coin  Pay Station 
Pay and Display 
Color: Black 
Power:  A/C (6) 
Payment Methods: Credit/Debit Card 
Configuration:  
Warranty: 13-month Hardware Warranty 

1 $5,900.00 $5,900.00   

Color Display 
 

1 $0.00 $0.00   

ePurse Magstripe cards (1,000+) 
 

1000 $0.41 $410.00   

   Annual Total $30,065.60 
 

$0.00 
 

$0.00 
  



 

                                                                           Page 2 of 2 

On-Going Services      
 
Product Name 

 
Quantity 

Sales  
Price 

Year One 
Total 

Year Two 
Total 

Year Three 
Total 

WebOffice Basic Pay and Display 
Includes: 
 Configuration 
Maintenance alarms alerts to cell phone 
Reporting (standard) 
Credit Card Gateway 
Cellular Communication Fees 
24/7 Support 1 $540.00 $540.00 $540.00 $540.00 
WebOffice Professional Edition Credit Card In 
Credit Card Out 
Includes: 
 Configuration 
Maintenance alarms alerts to cell phone 
Pay Station Mapping (Google Maps) 
Reporting (standard and analytical) 
Credit Card Gateway 
Cellular Communication Fees 
24/7 Support 4 $624.00 $2,496.00 $2,496.00 $2,496.00 
PartSmart Parts Exchange 
Extended hardware warranty. 5 $360.00 $0.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 

  Annual Total $3,036.00 
 

$4,836.00 
 

$4,836.00 
  

General Services       
 
Product Name 

 
Quantity 

Sales  
Price 

Year One 
Total 

Year Two 
Total 

Year Three 
Total 

CWT Installation 
Flowbird will secure and level pay station to the ground and 
provide hardware training, review preventative maintenance 
and trouble shooting 
Ground preparation is not included. 5 $250.00 $1,250.00    
Estimated CWT Shipping 
 5 $200.00 $1,000.00    

  Annual Total $2,250.00 
 

$0.00 
 

$0.00 
  

 
Total Costs 
 

  
Year One 

Total 
Year Two 

Total 
Year Three 

Total 
$35,351.60 $4,836.00 $4,836.00 

 
 
All prices stated are exclusive of taxes and shipping costs unless specifically itemized in this quotation.  Customer is 
responsible for all taxes or providing proof of tax-exempt status.  By accepting this order, Customer agrees to be 
bound by all applicable terms and conditions or terms of existing contract(s) between Customer and Flowbird for the 
same products and services, if any: 
  
Accepted by: ______________________________  Date: _____/_____/_____ 
 
Quote Acceptance Information 



9/30/2019 City of Cumberland, MD Mail - Re: Sole Source Approval

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=487f98bc6d&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-a%3Ar3537570737675783592%7Cmsg-f%3A1646109661234… 1/1

Kim Root <kim.root@cumberlandmd.gov>

Re: Sole Source Approval
1 message

Jeff Rhodes <jeff.rhodes@cumberlandmd.gov> Mon, Sep 30, 2019 at 10:08 AM
To: Kim Root <kim.root@cumberlandmd.gov>

Kim,

Approved.

Jeffrey D. Rhodes 
City Administrator
City of Cumberland, Maryland
301-759-6424

On Mon, Sep 30, 2019 at 10:05 AM Kim Root <kim.root@cumberlandmd.gov> wrote:
Jeff,
I am requesting a sole source approval to purchase 4 parking kiosks for the Centre City Parking garage.  Also 1
pay to display parking kiosk to be used in Lot 1.  The reason for the sole source request is to keep all the pay to
park kiosks within the City working off of the same financial system that the current kiosks that are in use
throughout the City are on.  This also allows us to use the extra batteries and components we have to make any
repairs needed to keep the kiosks up and running.  The sole source request is for $35,351.60.  The added
software charges will go onto the yearly invoices that we currently receive.  

Kim Root
Contract Labor Compliance Specialist
City of Cumberland, MD
W: (301) 759-6600 I F:(301) 759-6608
57 N. Liberty Street, Cumberland, MD 21502



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  26,540                     DATE:       October 1, 2019_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, sole source proposal from Flowbird Urban Intelligence to provide four 

(4) parking kiosks for the Centre City and Frederick Street Parking Garages and one (1) 

“Pay & Display” parking meter for Lot No. 1, be and is hereby accepted in the amount 

not to exceed Thirty-five Thousand, Three Hundred Fifty-One Dollars and Sixty Cents 

($35,351.60)    

 

 

 

     ____________________________________ 
      Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 

 

 
Funding:  Budgeted - 020.095.64000 

 


	Top
	1. CSX Update
	. Report - Central Services Monthly Report - August 2019
	Central Services - August 2019

	. Report - Police Dept. Monthly Report - August 2019
	August 2019

	1. Minutes - Work Session and Executive Session Minutes of 7/9/19
	Work Session Mins 07-09-19
	CEDC BRE Summary Hand-Out
	ExecSessMinutesCoverSheet&SummarySheet 7-9-19

	1. Ordinance 3859 - 349 Davidson St transfer
	Ordinance 3859 349 Davidson

	. Ordinance 3860 - small cell
	Small Cell Ordinance.v1 (4)

	. Order 26,532 - FY20 MCSS School Traffic Safety Grant
	2019-10-01 Order 26532 MCSS-FY20-SchoolTrafficSafetyGrant
	FY20 School Traffic Safety Enforcement Grant
	FY20 School traffic Safety Enforcement Grant

	. Order 26,533-FY20 MHSO Traffic Safety Grant - Distracted & DUI
	2019-10-01 Order 26533 FY20 MHSO-Distrtd&ImprdDrivingGrant-ProjAgrmt
	FY20 MHSO Traffic Safety Grant
	FY20 MHSO Traffic Safety Grant

	. Order 26,534 - Remount Horton Ambulance
	2019-10-01 Order 26534 FESCO-Remount Horton Ambulance
	SKM_C25819092314400

	. Order 26,535 - Cert. of Satisfaction-308 Woodside Drive
	2019-10-01 Order 26535-Certificate of Satisfaction-Clark
	Cert. of Satisf. 308 Woodside Dr and backup

	. Order 26,536 - STD Exemptions
	2019-10-01 Order 26536 STD exemptions-Giarritta-Hagan
	STD Exemptions backup

	. Order 26,537 ECWC McNees legal services
	2019-10-01 Order 26537 ECWC McNees legal services
	McNees Engagement Letter

	. Order 26,538 Open Containers Oct 12
	2019-10-01 Order 26538 Open Containers DDC
	Map

	. Order 26,539 Open containers Niners
	2019-10-01 Order 26539 Open Containers Niners
	Niners request

	. Order 26,540 Sole Source Agreement for Safe Slide Restoration
	2019-10-01 Order 26540 Safe Slide
	Safe Slide Restoration Agenda Sheet
	Contract - Constitution Park Pool - Safe Slide Restoration - 8.5.19
	Sole Source Approval for Safe Slide Restoration

	. Order 26,541  Flowbird parking kiosks
	Flowbird Agenda Sheet
	Cale Quote - Kiosks
	Kiosk sole source approval
	2019-10-01 Order 26541 Flowbird parking kiosks

	Bottom

